
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 
Christiansburg Planning Commission 


 Minutes of February 25, 2013 
 
Present: Ann H. Carter  
  M. H. Dorsett, AICP 
  David Franusich 
  Jonathan Hedrick 
  Steve Huppert 
  Craig Moore, Chairperson 
  Ashley Parsons 
  Joe Powers, Vice-Chairperson 
  Jennifer D. Sowers 
  Nichole Hair, Secretary Non-Voting 
 
Absent: Harry Collins  
    
     
Staff/Visitors: Kali Casper, staff 


 Missy Martin, staff 
 Cindy Disney, Montgomery County Planning Commission Liaison 
  
   


Chairperson Moore called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. in the Christiansburg Town 
Hall at 100 E. Main Street, Christiansburg, Virginia to discuss the following items: 
 
Public Comment. 
  


Chairperson Moore opened the floor for public comment.  No public comments were 
made.  Chairperson Moore closed the floor for public comment.   
 


Approval of meeting minutes for February 11, 2013. 
 
Chairperson Moore introduced the discussion.  Commissioner Dorsett made a 
motion to approve the February 11, 2013 Planning Commission meeting minutes.  
Commissioner Sowers seconded the motion which passed 9-0. 


 
Conditional Use Permit request by Cary W. Hopper for residential use at 970 Radford 
Street (tax parcel 525-((A))-20) in the B-3 General Business District.   
 


Chairperson Moore opened the discussion.  Chairperson Moore read the drafted 
Conditional Use Permit with one condition stating “the development will be limited to 
two, single-family residences”.  Commissioner Carter made a motion to recommend 
approval of the Conditional Use Permit with the one condition.  Commissioner 
Franusich seconded the motion.  Commissioner Carter noted she is happy to see it 
going back to use instead of sitting vacant and it is a good use of a property that is 
already there.  The motion passed 9-0. 







February 25, 2013 Page 2 


Work Session – Comprehensive Plan  
 


Chairperson Moore opened the discussion.  Commissioner Dorsett asked the work 
session be postponed for two weeks.   


 
Other Business 
 


Chairperson Moore explained the subcommittees for the new Planning Commission 
members.  Chairperson Moore asked Ms. Hair if the Historic District Subcommittee 
is currently meeting.  Ms. Hair responded no.  Chairperson Moore asked about the 
meeting times for the Development Subcommittee.  Commissioner Powers 
responded it is meeting once a month on the fourth Wednesdays.  Chairperson 
Moore added that new members could serve on these subcommittees.  Chairperson 
Moore asked about meeting time for the Comprehensive Plan Subcommittee.  
Commissioner Dorsett responded the subcommittee meets at 4:30pm.  Ms. Casper 
added first and third Wednesdays of each month at 4:30pm.  Chairperson Moore 
noted the Comprehensive Plan Subcommittee is working on the finer details to bring 
before Planning Commission.  Commissioner Dorsett added after the full 
Comprehensive Plan is finished, work on neighborhood plans will begin.  
Commissioner Franusich asked about the meeting time for the Development 
Subcommittee.  Commissioner Powers responded the committee meets at 9:30 in 
the morning on the fourth Wednesday of the month.  Both committee chairs 
welcomed the new Commission members to join either subcommittee.  Chairperson 
Moore noted the Planning Commissioners are compensated for these meetings.  
Ms. Hair added compensation is $25 per meeting.  Chairperson Moore added the 
compensation is limited to full meetings (30 minutes or more).  Commissioner 
Franusich asked about the time and location for Development Subcommittee.  Ms. 
Hair responded the committee meets at 9:30 a.m. in the Administrative Conference 
Room in Town Hall.  Chairperson Moore indicated the new Commissioners could try 
out the committees but would like a commitment by the Commissioners before 
compensation is granted and the Chairs of the committees need to be aware of the 
membership.  Commissioner Hedrick asked the location of the Comprehensive Plan 
Subcommittee meeting.  Commissioner Dorsett responded the meeting is held in the 
conference room.  Commissioner Powers noted different subjects are discussed 
each week for the Comprehensive Plan.  Commissioner Franusich asked if they 
could simply show up for the meeting.  Ms. Hair responded yes. 
 
Commissioner Powers asked Ms. Hair to speak about the Historic District meeting.  
Ms. Hair indicated the public hearing for the proposed Downtown Historic District 
was held two weeks ago and there was a great turnout from local property owners in 
the proposed district.  She added the State public hearing will be March 21st in 
Charlottesville and the local Salem representative will present.  She added the Town 
should know something by the end of March hopefully.  Commissioner Franusich 
asked about a map of the area.  Ms. Hair noted there is a map on DHR’s website but 
not yet on the Town’s website.  Chairperson Moore asked if the Town will have 
someone at the state public hearing.  Ms. Hair responded no but the DHR 
representative Mike Pulice will present the application to the Board.  She added the 
mayor has sent his recommendation that Council is in favor of the proposed district.    







February 25, 2013 Page 3 


Other Business (Continued) 
 
Commissioner Huppert indicated that Town Council has been addressing a situation 
at Falling Branch Elementary.  He noted Christiansburg is involved because 
Christiansburg kids go to Falling Branch.  He added people are stopping for different 
buses including the Roanoke bus and the Megabus (Knoxville to DC).  
Commissioner Huppert stated the problems are that the parking lot is extremely 
small for the number of cars and people are parking on the grass. He added VDOT 
owns the parking lot and VDOT is very tight on money.  He noted a portajohn has 
been put up and a bus shelter.  He continued on stating people have been going to 
the school to go to the bathroom, to plug in their calculators and different things.  He 
stated the school does not want people coming in to the school.  He added one man 
was told not to come in and went all the way around trying to get in a back door.  
The discussion has involved the County, School Board, VDOT, and the Town.  
Commissioner Huppert noted that Council held a special meeting to discuss these 
issues.  He indicated on a short term basis, there will be a police officer almost full 
time for the next three weeks.  He added VDOT will try to put a fence around the 
parking lot and increase signage and increase police patrolling.  In the long-term, it 
has been discussed to put a park and ride next to the Old Volkswagen place but that 
it will cost approximately $2-4 million.  Commissioner Sowers asked about the 
location of the police officer.  Commissioner Huppert said the officer does the DARE 
program and will be at the school anyway for the next three weeks.  Commissioner 
Dorsett asked why the cost is so high for the park and ride.  Ms. Hair responded 
VDOT may not own the entire property and may need to purchase property for bus 
access.  Commissioner Huppert noted there is a portajohn currently but the new lot 
would need restrooms and covering.  He added there have been some people 
camping out there when they get off the bus at 2am.  Commissioner Franusich 
asked about discussion of acquiring a different lot that is currently available such as 
the Hardees’ lot.  Commissioner Huppert noted a lack of money would make that 
difficult.  Commissioner Powers asked about using the lot for free for now in 
exchange for the business it would bring in from the bus travelers.  Commissioner 
Hedrick asked if the cost of $2-4 million to re-establish the current lot.  
Commissioner Huppert responded would be a question for VDOT.  He added the 
Megabus gets in at 3:30pm which is about the same time that school lets out and 
Megabus was asked if they would change the schedule but they will not.   
 
Chairperson Moore asked Commissioner Huppert to remind Council to look at the 
Comprehensive Plan chapters as they are given to them.  He added comments may 
be emailed to Ms. Casper as they arise as well.  Commissioner Huppert indicated 
that he would. 







February 25, 2013 Page 4 


Other Business (Continued) 
 
Commissioner Hedrick stated he has spoken with Todd Walters and that the 
community was invited to a community forum meeting last Tuesday at the mall 
center.  He added there were VDOT reps, local businesses, and about forty 
residents.  He indicated the meeting was very helpful to see what will happen on 
Route 114.  Leaders settled on looking at the intersection of Route 114 and Quinn 
Stewart Blvd. after the road completion.  Commissioner Hedrick added the residents 
believe they were promised a red light and he indicated that was likely not the case.  
He asked about the Zoning of the land across the street.  Ms. Hair responded it is 
zoned Agriculture.   
 
Commissioner Hedrick added Route 114 will be divided from the railroad tracks up 
to Domino’s Pizza and there will be three lanes of traffic to cross.  He noted the 
meeting lasted about 1.5 hours with most of the time devoted to discussion of the 
intersection.  Commissioner Hedrick thanked Engineering.  Commissioner Dorsett 
asked about a red light being installed as part of a proffer if commercial was 
developed on the Halberstadt property.  Ms. Hair responded not that she is aware of 
but added development may kick in some of the warrants for a traffic light.  
Commissioner Dorsett asked if the proposed By-Pass might be across from Quin 
Stewart.  Ms. Hair responded yes may be the alignment.  Commissioner Powers 
asked about the agricultural land across the street.  Ms. Hair responded it is for sale 
and it is the Truman Wilson property.  Commissioner Powers asked about the size.  
Ms. Hair responded it is fairly large.  Commissioner Powers noted a rezoning of the 
property would come before Planning Commission.  Ms. Hair agreed.  
Commissioner Dorsett asked about the three large landowners out on Peppers 
Ferry; the Halberstadts and Wilsons.  Ms. Hair noted the Ryplansky property.  
Commissioner Dorsett asked about karst features on the third property.   
 
Commissioner Powers asked Ms. Casper if there is any news from VDOT regarding 
the transportation chapter.  Ms. Casper responded that she was given confirmation 
today that the plan was received.  Chairperson Moore asked who has received the 
document.  Ms. Casper indicated David Clarke responded and that it was sent to Mr. 
Clarke and Mike Gray.   
 


There being no more business Chairperson Moore adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Craig Moore, Chairperson    Nichole Hair, Secretary Non-Voting 








Ord. 2013-xx 


1 
 


AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 30 “ZONING” OF THE 
CHRISTIANSBURG TOWN CODE IN REGARDS TO SIDEWALK 


REQUIREMENT IN THE B-1 LIMITED BUSINESS, B-2 CENTRAL BUSINESS 
AND B-3 GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICTS 


 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia has 
recommended to the Council of the Town of Christiansburg amendments to the Zoning 
Ordinance of the Town of Christiansburg; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the Planning Commission public hearing regarding the 
intention of the Town Council to pass said ordinance was published two consecutive weeks 
(March 9, 2013 and March 16, 2013) in The News Messenger, a newspaper published in 
and having general circulation in the Town of Christiansburg; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of the intention of the Town Council to pass said ordinance was 
published two consecutive weeks (March 20, 2013 and March 27, 2013) in The News 
Messenger, a newspaper published in and having general circulation in the Town of 
Christiansburg; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing of the Planning Commission of the Town was held 
March 25, 2013 and resulted in a recommendation by the Planning Commission that the 
following proposed ordinance revisions be adopted; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing of Council of the Town was held April 16, 2013; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, Council deems proper so to do, 
 
 Be it ordained by the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia that 
Sections 30-103(f) of Chapter 30 “Zoning” of the Christiansburg Town Code be amended 
as follows: 
 


ARTICLE X. LIMITED BUSINESS DISTRICT B-1 
 


 (e) Sidewalks shall be required for all new development.  In lieu of sidewalks, an owner 
or developer may provide a paved multi-use trail a minimum of ten (10) feet in width 
connecting to the street right-of-way adjoining other properties and to each lot within the 
development by a hard surface connection with Town Manager approval.   The Zoning 
Administrator/Town Manager may waive this requirement in circumstances that sidewalks do not 
provide desired connectivity and/or are not physically practical due to site limitations provided 
the owner/developer makes a contribution in an amount approximate to the sidewalk installation 
cost to the Town of Christiansburg to be utilized for sidewalk improvements and/or repairs in 
other locations.  The Zoning Administrator/Town Manager may refer the decision regarding the 
connectivity and/or practicality to the Planning Commission should there be any doubts.  The 
Town Manager/Town Engineer shall make the determination of the approximate sidewalk 
installation cost. 
(Code 1972, § 30-70; Ord. of 5-2-89; Ord. of 6-20-89; Ord. of 7-2-91; Ord. of 6-2-98; Ord. 2004-
4 of 9-7-04, § 30-70) 







Ord. 2013-xx 


2 
 


 
ARTICLE XI. CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT B-2 


Sec. 30-98. Frontage, yards and height. 
 
 There shall be no minimum frontage, side yard setback, or rear yard regulations except 
that no building or structure shall be located closer than ten feet to the boundary of a Residential 
District.  However, no building or structure shall be located within any easement or right-of-way.  
Additionally, gas station pump island locations shall comply with Virginia Department of 
Transportation setbacks.  There shall be no height regulation with the exception that structures 
greater than 70 feet shall require Conditional Use Permit approval.  Town water tanks shall be 
exempt from the Conditional Use Permit requirement. 
 
 Sidewalks shall be required for all new development.  In lieu of sidewalks, an owner or 
developer may provide a paved multi-use trail a minimum of ten (10) feet in width 
connecting to the street right-of-way adjoining other properties and to each lot within the 
development by a hard surface connection with Town Manager approval.   The Zoning 
Administrator/Town Manager may waive this requirement in circumstances that sidewalks do not 
provide desired connectivity and/or are not physically practical due to site limitations provided 
the owner/developer makes a contribution in an amount approximate to the sidewalk installation 
cost to the Town of Christiansburg to be utilized for sidewalk improvements and/or repairs in 
other locations.  The Zoning Administrator/Town Manager may refer the decision regarding the 
connectivity and/or practicality to the Planning Commission should there be any doubts.  The 
Town Manager/Town Engineer shall make the determination of the approximate sidewalk 
installation cost. 
(Code 1972, § 30-76; Ord. of 6-20-89; Ord. of 6-2-98; Ord. 2004-4 of 9-7-04, § 30-76; Ord. 
2012-6 of 6-19-12) 


 
 


ARTICLE XII. GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT B-3 
 
Sec. 30-103. Frontage and yards. 
 
 (f) Sidewalks shall be required for all new development.  In lieu of sidewalks, an owner 
or developer may provide a paved multi-use trail a minimum of ten (10) feet in width 
connecting to the street right-of-way adjoining other properties and to each lot within the 
development by a hard surface connection with Town Manager approval.   The Zoning 
Administrator/Town Manager may waive this requirement in circumstances that sidewalks do not 
provide desired connectivity and/or are not physically practical due to site limitations provided 
the owner/developer makes a contribution in an amount approximate to the sidewalk installation 
cost to the Town of Christiansburg to be utilized for sidewalk improvements and/or repairs in 
other locations.  The Zoning Administrator/Town Manager may refer the decision regarding the 
connectivity and/or practicality to the Planning Commission should there be any doubts.  The 
Town Manager/Town Engineer shall make the determination of the approximate sidewalk 
installation cost. 
(Code 1972, § 30-81; Ord. of 5-2-89; Ord. of 6-20-89; Ord. of 7-2-91; Ord. of 6-2-98; Ord. 2001-
5 of 11-6-01; Ord. 2004-4 of 9-7-04, § 30-81) 
 
 
 
 







Ord. 2013-xx 


3 
 


This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  If any part of this ordinance is 
deemed unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction all remaining parts shall be deemed 
valid. Ordinances or parts of any ordinances of the Town whose provisions are in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
 


Upon a call for an aye and nay vote on the foregoing ordinance at a regular 
meeting of the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia held xx, the members of 
the Council of the Town of Christiansburg, Virginia present throughout all deliberations 
on the foregoing and voting or abstaining, stood as indicated opposite their names as 
follows: 


 


    Aye  Nay  Abstain  Absent 
 


Mayor Richard G. Ballengee* 
 


D. Michael Barber     
 


Cord Hall        
 


Steve Huppert      
 


Henry Showalter     
 


Bradford J. Stipes     
 


James W. “Jim” Vanhoozier    
 


*Votes only in the event of a tie vote by Council. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
SEAL: 
 
 
__________________________   ______________________________ 
Michele M. Stipes, Town Clerk   Richard G. Ballengee, Mayor 


 


 
 
 
 





